HISTORIC SIGNIFICANCE

This building is a remnant of the early days of Elgin. When the railroad came
through Elgin on the way to Galena, William C. Kimball, a resident since 1837,
recognized the benefit of a large hotel near the rail station. Thus, in 1852, he built
the Waverly House, Elgin’s first real hotel, which opened on New Year’s Eve in
1853, at 22-24 State Street. At the time, it was touted as “one of the best hotels in
the country”. The ballroom could accommodate 100 people.

The property extended from State Street west to the railway tracks. The builder
was Horace Benham. The building at 219 W. Highland was originally the stable
for the Waverly Hotel.

William Currier Kimball (1806-1875) was a merchant in Canada. His father,
Joseph Kimball, wrote to him, urging him to come to Elgin. Three weeks after
writing that letter, Joseph died of cholera. William came to Elgin in 1837 with his
brother Samuel. Together, they claimed much of the land on the west side of the
river.

The Kimballs obtained most of their original holdings in Elgin through Land
Grants from the United States of America. See attached deeds for three land
grants, Kane County Record Book 10 pages 196-198. William platted W.C.
Kimball’s Original Plat of Elgin in 1843.

An astute businessman, William opened a general store at the northwest corner
of State Street and Highland Avenue. In the 1840s, he established a flour mill,
Waverly Mills, across the street from his store, and in 1853 opened the Waverly
Hotel. Sadly, he lost the hotel in the economic crash of 1857, but it remained in
business.

In 1865, by means of a Special Warranty, lots 7, 8, 9, and 10 of Block 29 of the
City of Elgin were transferred by Emily Spencer of Hartford Connecticut to
Stephen Lasher for the sum of $9000 (County Record Book 82 page 577). The
hotel was then run by Stephen and his son Leonard until 1881. Due to a decline in
business in 1880, the decision was made to close the hotel.

Stephen Lasher was born in 1820. He and his wife Margaret, both born in New
York, moved to Elgin in 1859. Son Leonard was born in 1837 in New York.
Leonard married Carrie, who was born in Wisconsin in 1848. The Leonards had
two sons, Walter, born in 1877 and Frank Moore Leonard. Leonard died August
9, 1901. Carrie died in 1925. They are buried in Bluff City Cemetery.

After the demise of the hotel, the building was used for various purposes. In
1884, it was sold to the City of Elgin and renovated for use as a jail, and in 1886
was the police department headquarters.



The former hotel was the first quarters of the Elgin Condensed Milk Company,
from 1888 until 1894, when Illinois Condensing Company, whose main plant was
at 200 Brook Street, acquired it. Elgin Milkine Company, established in
Wisconsin as Dry Extract Company, moved to Elgin in 1897 and leased the hotel
building. Borden bought Elgin Milkine Company in 1903 and moved its malted
milk operations to this location. In 1912, Borden constructed the building to the
south and moved its malted milk operations there.

The four-story brick building was finally razed in 1917. In 1923, the McCornack
Oil Company leased the corner part of the property to build an ornate red brick
station. Currently, the property that once boasted Elgin’s best hotel stands vacant
and is used as a parking lot.

The stable building has also been put to a variety of uses over the years. It was
converted to a motorcycle shop in 1997 that operated here until the shop moved
to East Dundee in 1999. In 2008, Elgin Windmill Factory Antiques moved here
from 80 North State Street. A year later, this business was purchased by Frank
Collingbourne, who opened Collingbourne’s “Interesting Things” in 2009. The
shop closed in 2016.

The most recent occupant is Rosalba Pifion, who opened Frida’s Party Room in
2017. Frida’s Party Room is a multi-faceted all-purpose performance and event
venue, hosting events such as weddings, banquets, music events, birthdays, and
baby showers, and, in May of 2023, the Elgin Heritage Commission’s Mayor’s
Awards Ceremony. The large venue area is equipped with professional stage
and lighting equipment, seating areas, bar and catering equipment to
facilitate events of all sizes.

Acknowledgements: Elgin History Museum, David Siegenthaler.

ARCHITECTURAL SIGNIFICANCE
Legal description: W. C. Kimball’s original plat of Elgin Block 29 Lots 8 and 9.

The existing stand-alone building was built as an accessory structure for the
Waverly Hotel. The original use was a stable.

The one-story, flat roofed building is primarily of cobblestone construction,
consisting of glacial stones embedded in thick limestone mortar, a building
technique originating in and around Rochester New York. Construction of the
Erie Canal between 1820-25 attracted stone masons who built the lock and bridge
abutments. After completion of the canal, many masons turned their talents to
the construction of cobblestone homes. Stones were plentiful in that area, and
less costly than brick.

Many of Elgin’s pioneers moved here from upstate New York, including city
founder James T. Gifford and stone mason Ralph Grow, who built the
cobblestone at 302 West Chicago Street for Nancy Kimball. Elgin is believed to



have had the largest concentration of cobblestone buildings outside of the
Rochester area. Elgin’s cobblestones are among the earliest structures built here.
Originally there were 20 such building, including homes, two churches, a stable
and a store. Of the six that remain, three are on the west side of the river, all of
which were built for the Kimball family. These include the Nancy Kimball House
at 302 W. Chicago (circa 1846), the stable at 219 W. Highland (1852), and 326-28
Mountain Street, home of Edison Kimball (circa 1850). Cobblestones on the east
side include James T. Gifford’s home at 363-65 Prairie Street (1849-50), the
home at 319 DuPage Street (1849-50), and the home at 302 Fulton Street (circa
1850).

Significant architectural features include overhanging eaves, exposed rafter tails,
cobblestone facade with thick mortar joints, large segmental arch entry with
stone quoins and stone corner quoins. Segmental arches and stone lintels grace
the windows on both the upper and lower levels. Segmental arches, arched
windows with curved hoods, and eave brackets are found in Italianate Style
structures.

ALTERATIONS

Upper and lower level replacement windows are slightly smaller than originals,
and are rectangular rather than arched. Windows on the north facade have been
boarded up. The stone-faced section to the west is thought to have been an early
addition.

Addenda

Photos of building current and 1930s
Deeds 1847

City directory page 1957

1880 hand-drawn aerial map excerpt

1895 hand-drawn aerial map excerpt
Sanborn fire insurance maps 1913 and 1950
Historical Architectural Survey
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Interior Frida’s Party Room
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City of ELGIN [LLINOIS URBAN ARCHITECTURAL

AND HISTORICAL SURVEY
<I—ﬁ—\———

STREET = 219
DIRECTION W
STREET HIGHLAND
SUFFIN AV

PN 0514406001
LOCAL

SIGNIFICANCE

RATING S

POTENTIAL IND
NR? (Y ot N) N

CRITERIA

Contributing 10 a
NRDISTRICT? C

Contributing secomdary structure?

Listed on existing

SURVEY?
GENERAL INFORMATION
CATEGORY building CURRENT FUNCTION Commerce/Trade
CONDITION  good HISTORIC FUNCTION  Transportation - road-related (livery)
INTEGRITY  munor alterabons and addition(s) REASON for Significant as one of Elgin's few remaining cobblestone

SIGNFICANC vulldings
STOREFRONT INTEGRITY  N/A y ¥ o
SECONDARY
STRUCTURE

ARCHITECTURAL DESCRIPTION
ARCHITECTURAL PLAN rectanguar
CLASSIFICATION  Siable

NO OF STORIES 2
DETAILS

ROOF TYPE Not visibie
BEGINYEAR ¢ 1853

ROOF MATERIAL  Not visible
OTHER YEAR

FOUNDATION Swone
DATESOURCE Plague

PORCH

WALL MATERIAL (current) Stone
WINDOW MATERIAL  Wood

WALL MATERIAL 2 (current)  Brick
WINDOW MATERIAL

WALL MATERIAL (original) Stone
WINDOW TYPLE xed

WALL MATERIAL 2 (original)
WINDOW CONFIG 1-light

SIGNIFICANT  Overhanging eaves wi exposed rafter tails: cobblestone fagade w/ thick mortar joints rough stone at W.end; large
FEATURES segmental arch center entry wi stone quoin surrcund, segmental arch 1st & 2nd story window openings w/ rowlock
intels

ALTERATIONS Replacement windows in slightly downsized openings on 1st story; boarded up 2nd story windows: slone secton (o
wes! may also be early addition; historic photo of building (see Historic Info) shows 2 story stable building.-2nd story
may have been remaved

STOREFRONT
FEATURES




STO -

ALTERATIONS |

I

HISTORIC INFORMATION

HISTORIC  Waverly Hotel Stable
NAME 1 o a |
COMMON  Sylvester's Upholstery 1
NAME L o J
COST [ - N - |
ARCHITECT | T
ARCHITECT2 ]
BUILDER | B |
ARCHITECT ]
SOURCE | {

| -

HISTORIC |Historic photograph of stabie building
INFO fon page 14 of OLD ELGIN: A
:FIGTQH.IAL HISTORY (E. C. Alft).

FERMITS

|
LANDSCAFE  |Midblock on south side of H |
Avene; train bridge just bo west of |
building; frond sidewalk; paraliel
parking at front

PREPARER Lara Ramsay o

PREPARER GRAMACK] HISTORIC

ORGANIZATION SONSULTANTS

SURVEYDATE = snezoor o -
- ——— ———f DIGITAL E'l.lmpqes'l.l-nghlun  DIGITAL

SURVEYAREA  ELGIN DOWNTOWN ] PHOTOID  (d218wjpg |FHOTOIDY |

0 HIGHLIHD DIGITAL [ maerraL [

PHOTOIDZ | ) | PHOTOIDY |




City of ELGIN

ILLINOIS URBAN ARCHITECTURAL AND HISTORICAL SURVEY
CONTINUATION SHEET

sTREET# 219

STREET W. Highland Avenue

ADDITIONAL PHOTOS OR INFORMATION
Historic Photographs

[From page 14 of OLD ELGIN: A PICTORIAL HISTORY (E. C. Alft)]

Architectural survey 2007
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